NON-CONFIDENTIAL
BOROUGH OF TAMWORTH

@‘L"f‘

CABINET

31 October 2018

A meeting of the CABINET will be held on Thursday, 8th November, 2018, 6.00 pm
in Committee Room 1 - Marmion House

AGENDA

NON CONFIDENTIAL

1 Apologies for Absence
Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 3 - 4)
3 Declarations of Interest

To receive any declarations of Members’ interests (pecuniary and non-pecuniary)
in any matters which are to be considered at this meeting.

When Members are declaring a pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in respect of
which they have dispensation, they should specify the nature of such interest.
Members should leave the room if they have a pecuniary or non-pecuniary
interest in respect of which they do not have a dispensation.

4 Question Time:

To answer questions from members of the public pursuant to Executive
Procedure Rule No. 13

5 Matters Referred to the Cabinet in Accordance with the Overview and
Scrutiny Procedure Rules

None

6 Budget Consultation 2019/20 (Pages 5 - 40)
(Report of the Leader of the Council)

7 Town Centre Report (Pages 41 - 54)
(Report of the Portfolio Holder for Heritage and Growth)



Yours faithfully

Chief Executive

People who have a disability and who would like to attend the meeting should contact
Democratic Services on 01827 709264 or e-mail committees@tamworth.gov.uk
preferably 24 hours prior to the meeting. We can then endeavour to ensure that any
particular requirements you may have are catered for.

To Councillors: D Cook, R Pritchard, J Chesworth, S Claymore, S Doyle and
M Thurgood.



Agenda Item 2

= =

<

L= St N D

A el
2 NAnnn Tk %
P xsvavavsvar|
s

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE

CABINET
HELD ON 18th OCTOBER 2018

PRESENT: Councillor D Cook (Chair), Councillors

R Pritchard (Vice-Chair), J Chesworth, S Claymore, S Doyle and
M Thurgood

The following officers were present: Andrew Barratt (Chief Executive), Rob
Barnes (Executive Director Communities) and Matthew Bowers (Assistant
Director Growth & Regeneration)

55 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
No apologies for absence were received.
56 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

The minutes of the meeting held on 27t September 2018 were approved and
signed as a correct record.

(Moved by Councillor R Pritchard and seconded by Councillor S Claymore)
57 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no Declarations of Interest.
58 QUESTION TIME:

None

59 MATTERS REFERRED TO THE CABINET IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULES

None

60 STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT AND LOCAL DEVELOPMENT
SCHEME 2018-2021

1
Page 3



61

Cabinet 18 October 2018

The Portfolio Holder for Heritage and Growth is seeking Cabinet approval to
adopt and publish a new Statement of Community Involvement and Local
Development Scheme. An update on the Council’s position in respect of the
delivery of housing and employment land targets within the adopted local plan is
also included within the report

RESOLVED That Cabinet;

Resolved to adopt the content of the new Statement of
Community Involvement included in appendix A from 01
November 2018; and that approval was given for officers
to carry out final word processing of the document prior to
publication

Resolved to adopt the 2018-2021 Local Development
Scheme, included in appendix B with effect from 01
November 2018 and;

Endorsed the Statement of Common Ground that has
been agreed with Lichfield District Council and North
Warwickshire  Borough Council which details the
arrangements for the delivery of Tamworth’'s unmet
housing and employment land need.

(Moved by Councillor S Claymore and seconded by Councillor R Pritchard)
HOMES ENGLAND COMPLIANCE AUDIT REPORT
The Portfolio Holder for Housing Services and Neighbourhoods notes the
outcome of the Home England compliance audit report in completion of the
Affordable Homes grant process
RESOLVED That Cabinet;

Noted the outcome of the Homes England Compliance

Audit Report regarding redevelopment of garage sites

(Moved by Councillor M Thurgood and seconded by Councillor D Cook)

Leader

2
Page 4



CABINET Agenda ltem 6

THURSDAY, 8 NOVEMBER 2018
REPORT OF THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL
BUDGET CONSULTATION 2019/20

EXEMPT INFORMATION

There is no exempt information
PURPOSE

To inform Cabinet of the outcomes arising from consultation undertaken with residents,
businesses and the voluntary sector in accordance with the corporate budget setting
process.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That Cabinet endorse the report and take account of the findings along with other sources of
information when setting the 2019/20 Budget.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Council reviews its spending, Council Tax and charges on an annual basis as part of the
budget setting process to ensure that funding is focussed in priority areas. The views of
residents, businesses and the voluntary sector are always an important part of this process
and therefore, as in previous years, these groups were invited to share their views. The
report at Appendix 1 summarises the views of those who participated. The key findings are
summarised below:

The most popular response in 10 of the 12 major cost areas was for spending to remain the
same. These responses ranged from 63% in 'refuse and recycling’ to 44% in ’‘commissioning
services from voluntary organisations/charities.’

In 7 of the 12 cost areas, spending less was the second most common response. ‘Improved
access to information/customer services’ was the biggest priority for reduced spend (51%).
This was also the most frequently identified cost area for savings (56%).

In one cost area (’tackling anti-social behaviour’), 50% of respondents chose the option to
increase spending. One third or more also wanted increased spending in the areas of ‘parks,
open spaces and street cleaning’ (37%) and ‘improving the economic, physical, social and
environment condition of Tamworth’ (34%).

More than half of respondents chose to increase charges for ‘leisure and other activities’
(57%) and ‘public spaces’ (53%). Conversely, 65% of respondents chose the option to
decrease charges for ‘car parking.’

Regarding any increase to the level of council tax, the most popular option was Option A, the
lowest proposed increase of 0.6%. This was selected by 44% of respondents. This was
followed by option B (2.0% rise) selected by 26% of respondents. The maximum increase of
3.0% (option E) was selected by 15% of respondents. The maximum level of increase (3.0%)
is still below the average level of increase witnessed for all authorities across the West
Midlands (4.9%) according to CIPFA’s (The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy) latest annual council tax survey.

Interestingly, in the individual responses raised, wider questions on council spend were
raised — including the need to: ‘scrutinise budgets’; undertake ‘service reviews’; ensure
‘efficient spend’; and ‘income generating services and funding initiatives’ and focus on ‘core
activities’.

Page 5



RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
There are no resource implications arising from this report
LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND

It is a statutory duty to consult before the development of the budget. Budget consultation
ensures our compliance with this

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

There are no sustainability implications arising from this report.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

As part of an annual process Tamworth Borough Council reviews its Council Tax and
Charges strategy for the development of the budget. This process ensures that funding is
put into areas of highest priority. An important element of this process is to understand the
views of residents, businesses, and local voluntary groups on what these priorities are
REPORT AUTHOR

John Day

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

None

APPENDICES

Budget Consultation 2019/20 — Full report.

Page 6



Tamworth

Borough Council

oltamworthlistens

your town = your life m your say

Budget Consultation Report 2018

FOR THE 2019/20 BUDGET

Produced by ’}“’;:\,}“T;' StaffO I’dSh | re On behalf of Tamorth

‘\\\\4"\\\-“4 Cou nty Council P 7 Borough Council
age



DOCUMENT DETAILS

This document has been produced on behalf of Tamworth Borough
Council by the Staffordshire County Council Insight Team

Title Budget Consultation Summary Report
Date created September 2018
Description The purpose of this document is to provide Tamworth Borough Council with the

consultation results which provide insight into residents, businesses and community
and voluntary organisations budget priorities for the year ahead.

Produced by Heather Collier, Research Co-ordinator
Strategy Team, Strategy, Governance & Change, Staffordshire County Council
Tel: 01785 277450  Email: heather.collier@staffordshire.gov.uk

Geographical coverage ~ Tamworth Borough

Format Publisher and Pdf

Status Final (Version 1)

Usage statement This product is the property of Tamworth Borough Council. If you wish to reproduce
this document either in whole, or in part, please acknowledge the source and the
author (s).

Disclaimer Staffordshire County Council, while believing the information in this publication to be

correct, does not guarantee its accuracy nor does the County Council accept any
liability for any direct or indirect loss or damage or other consequences, however
arising from the use of such information supplied.

Page 8



CONTENTS

2.1
2.2
2.3
2.4

0 N o U &

10.
11.
12.

Executive summary

Introduction

Methodology

Responses

Profile of respondents for the residents survey
Spending on services

Council Tax increase for the 2019/20 budget?
Where do you think the Council could make savings
Making Tamworth Better for Business

Voluntary and Community services organisations
Residents respondent profile

Combined tables of results

Residents tables of results

Business tables of results

Community and Voluntary organisations tables of results

Page 9

00 N N O o b

22
23
24
26
27
28

30
33



1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1: Spend on services

The most popular response in 10 of the 12 major cost areas was for spending to remain the same. These
responses ranged from 63% in ‘refuse and recycling’ to 44% in ‘commissioning services from voluntary
organisations/charities.’

In 7 of the 12 cost areas, spending less was the second most common response. ‘Improved access to
information/customer services’ was the biggest priority for reduced spend (51%). This was also the most
frequently identified cost area for savings (56%).

In one cost area ("tackling anti-social behaviour’), half of respondents (50%) chose the option to increase
spending. One third or more also wanted increased spending in the following two areas; ‘parks, open
spaces and street cleaning’ (37%) and ‘improving the economic, physical, social and environment
condition of Tamworth’ (34%).

More than half of respondents chose to increase charges for ‘leisure and other activities’ (57%) and
‘public spaces’ (53%). However general comments in section 3.5 give insight into variation in opinions.
Conversely, 65% of respondents chose the option to decrease charges for ‘car parking.’

Regarding any increase to the level of council tax, the most popular option was Option A, the lowest
proposed increase of 0.6%,. This was selected by 44% of respondents. This was followed by option B
(2.0% rise) selected by 26% of respondents. The maximum increase of 3.0% (option E) was selected by
15% of respondents. The maximum level of increase (3.0%) is still below the average level of increase
witnessed for all authorities across the West Midlands (4.9%) according to CIPFA’s (The Chartered
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy) latest annual council tax survey.

1.2: Views on spend over time
This year, as with last, it was most common for respondents to want the level of spend to remain the

same. Respondents most wanted to maintain spend on ‘refuse and recycling services.” However, during
the last year, respondents strength of feeling has changed. The overall proportion of respondents
wanting to maintain spend has declined in some key areas including ‘waste and recycling services’ and
increased in others, for example, ‘tackling anti-social behaviour.’

Figure 1.1: Percentage change between 2017 and 2018 in people saying they would maintain spend (% change)

Refuse collection/recycling -12%
Sports/Leisure
Commissioning services from voluntary organisations/charities

Improved access to information/customer services

Grants for voluntary organisations/charities

Parks, open spaces, street cleaning -2%

Business support/advice
Events
Improving the economic, physical, social, environmental condition of...
Housing advice, grants, homelessness
Housing

Tackling anti-social behaviour

Page 10

H



Reduced and increased spend were less popular options with respondents. During the last year,

respondents strength of feeling for both has changed within the overall proportion of respondents. This

is illustrated in the graphs below.

Figure 1.2: Percentage change between 2017 and 2018
in people saying they would reduce spend (% change)

Housing -0.1"/*
Housing advice, grants, homelessness
Tackling anti-social behaviour
Sports/Leisure 6%
Grants for voluntary organisations/charities 6%
Refuse collection/recycling 8%
Improving the economic, physical, social, environmental condition of
Tamworth =

1.3: Priorities for savings over time

Figure 1.3: Percentage change between 2017 and 2018

in people saying they would increase spend (% change)

Tackling anti-social behaviour
Improved access to information/customer services
Improving the economic, physical, social, environmental...
Housing
Housing advice, grants, homelessness %
Business support/advice -2%.

Parks, open spaces, street cleaning I 1%

Grants for voluntary organisations/charities
Commissioning services from voluntary...
Events
Refuse collection/recycling
Sports/Leisure

This year, the most important priority for saving was ‘improved access to information/customer services.’

During the last year, this has also become a much greater priority for saving amongst all respondents.

Figure 1.4: Percentage change in the priorities for saving between 2017 and 2018 (% change)

Lesser priority for saving

Events
Sports and leisure

Voluntary sector commissioning

Greater priority for saving

7%
-6% [
5% [

\ 4

T
1%

-0.4% |

Voluntary sector grants
Refuse collection and recycling
Improving the economic, physical, social and environmental...
Housing advice, grants and homelessness
Tackling anti-social behaviour
Housing
Parks, open spaces and street cleaning
Business support and advice

Improved access to information/customer services

1.4: Increasing charges over time I.5: Decreasing charges over time

Increased charges have become slightly more This year higher proportions of respondents supported

acceptable this year for ‘public spaces’ and ‘car . decreased charges in ‘waste management’ and

i ‘commercial property.’

parking.’

Figure 1.5: Increasing charges over time (%) : Figure 1.6: Decreasing charges over time (%)
100% .
%0% 100%
80% 90%
70% 80%
0% 70%
50% 60%
40% 50%
30% 40%
20% 30%
10% h 20%
o Page-1

Public charges for  Public spaces Waste Commercial Car parking : o
Ieistne management property Car parking Public charges for Waste Commercial Public spaces
m2014 ®m2015 =m20l6 ®m2017 ~2018 leisure management property

m2014 m2015 m2016 m2017 ~2018



2.1: INTRODUCTION

Tamworth Borough Council reviews it’s council tax and charges on an annual basis and this helps to
develop the Council’s budget and ensures funding is put into areas which are of priority.

Residents, businesses and the voluntary sector are always an important part of this process. Therefore
this year as in previous years, all these groups were invited to share their views on spend, making savings
and charges for the year ahead. Responses highlight some of the conversations the council might develop
with these groups going forward.

This report summarises the views of those who participated. While this is not fully representative of
Tamworth opinion it provides a helpful addition to the information that will inform the Council’s
budgeting decisions for the year ahead.

The report presents the analysis of the combined results from all three respondent groups and
emphasises where there are differences in opinions between the distinct groups. Comparisons with the
results of the consultation from previous years have also been made in order to identify commonality or
differences in opinions over time. Full results for each of the thee groups are included in the appendix.

2.2: METHODOLOGY

The consultation for the 2019/20 budget ran from 1st August to the 14th September 2018 and three key
groups (residents, businesses and the voluntary sector) were encouraged to share their views through
tailored paper and online surveys.

These surveys were developed by Tamworth Borough Council in conjunction with Staffordshire County
Council’s Strategy Team. These were based on surveys used in previous years.

Tamworth Borough Council promoted all three surveys via a range of communications channels. These
included press releases in the local newspaper (The Tamworth Herald), a prominent feature on the
Tamworth Borough Council website and through social media including Twitter, Facebook and the
Tamworth Borough Council blog.

Tamworth Borough Council (with support from Staffordshire County Council) also targeted specific
groups to take part in the consultation. These included:

. Members of the Tamworth Borough Council Citizens’ Panel and Tamworth Borough Council Housing
Tenants. Both groups received a direct letter or email encouraging them to participate in the
residents survey.

. Businesses received an email encouraging them to participate in the business survey. This was also
widely promoted by the Economic Development Team.

. Voluntary sector organisations and recipients of small sports and arts grants were also emailed to
encourage their involvement.

. Involvement was also supported and promoted by Support Staffordshire and Tamworth Borough
Council’s Community Development Team.

. Stakeholders including SCVYS, Age UK and groups representing race, disability and carers were also
emailed and encouraged to participate in the surveys.

Page 12



2.3: RESPONSES

A total of 168 responses were received to the consultation and these consisted of:

o 154 residents.

. 3 businesses; two (67%) were in a town centre location and one (33%) was in an out of town
location.
. 11 community and voluntary organisations; four (36%) of these were ‘a registered charity’; two

(18%) were community interest companies; two (18%) were voluntary groups; two (18%) were
community groups and one (9%) was a ‘company limited by guarantee.’

For the purpose of analysis, responses from all three groups have been combined. Where differences
were apparent by respondent type, these have been highlighted graphically or through a textual
summary.

Some caution should be applied when interpreting the results, particularly in relation to those business
and voluntary organisation responses. Responses from these groups were low and therefore should not
be viewed as representative of the overall communities which they represent.

2.4: PROFILE OF RESPONDENTS FOR THE RESIDENTS SURVEY

In total, there were 168 responses to the Tamworth residents survey. This equates to 0.3% of the adult
population of Tamworth® which is slightly lower than last years response rate.

In statistical terms, the 95% confidence level has been applied to the residents survey results. This means
that if the survey was repeated, in 95 out of 100 cases, the same response would be achieved.

Residents responses have an overall confidence interval of +/-8% meaning that the percentage responses
they have given to any questions could fall in the range of 8% higher or 8% lower than their actual
response. A confidence interval of +/-3-4% is fairly typical for a statistically robust surveyz.

When considering key demographics, residents responses were representative of some key
characteristics but were less so of others:

=  The residents survey falls within an acceptable range of representation by gender.3

= It was more common for older residents to participate in the residents survey and therefore the
results are generally over representative of those respondents aged 55-74. The survey is under
representative by 18-34 year olds and 45-54 year olds. Good representation has been achieved from
35-44 year olds.?

=  The survey results are slightly over representative by those respondents who had a disability.”

=  Responses are representative of the most commonly occurring ethnicities of White British and
White Other.*

! The adult population of Tamworth includes those residents who are aged 18 and above, Mid Year Estimates (MYE) 2017.

2 To achieve a +/-4% confidence interval for the residents survey, 500 responses would need to be achieved from Tamworth

Borough Residents and to achieve a +/-3% confidence interval, 800 responses would need to be returned.
*> Mid Year Population Estimates (MYE), 2017, Office of Na%&%tﬂt@s (ONS).
* Census 2011, Office of National Statistics (ONS). 7



3. SPENDING ON SERVICES

3.1: Spending

Respondents were provided with planned spend on major cost areas for 2018/19 and were asked

whether they felt the Council should increase, decrease or keep spending the same.

= It was most common for respondents across the majority of service areas to say they would prefer
the level of spend to remain the same. This was the case in 10 of the 12 major cost areas.

=  This was particularly apparent regarding spend on ‘refuse and recycling’ with 63% wanting to
maintain the same level of spend on this service. In addition, half indicated their preference for
keeping spend the same in three additional areas; ‘parks, open spaces and street cleaning’ (52%),
‘housing advice, grants and homelessness’ (52%) and ‘improving the economic, physical, social and
environmental condition of Tamworth’ (50%).

=  Spending less was the second most common response (in 7 out of the 12 major cost areas) and the
highest proportion of respondents wanted less spend in ‘improved access to information/customer
services’ (51%).

=  Half of all respondents (50%) wanted spending more on ‘tackling anti-social behaviour.” The
collective views from all respondents are illustrated in the graph below:

Figure 3.1: Preferred spend for 2019/20 on major cost areas (%)

Tackling anti-social behaviour 10)74 8% 8

Parks, open spaces, street cleaning 37% 10%

Improving the economic, physical, social, environmental
condition of Tamworth

34% 15%

%

1%

Refuse collection/recycling 26% 10% [

Housing advice, grants, homelessness 21% 26%

Events 20% 28%

1%

3%

Sports/Leisure 18% 33% 2%

Grants for voluntary organisations/charities 16% 36%

2%

Commissioning services from voluntary organisations/charities | 5% 35% 6%

Housing 14% 33% 4%

Business support/advice 1 1% 38% 4%

Improved access to information/customer services [EFA 51%

Base: All respondents B More MSame Hless ™ No opinion

Page 14

0o

%



3.2: Maintain levels of spending®
There were some similarities but also differences in views by respondent group. ‘Residents’ views
generally mirrored those of the overall results (as these were the largest group).

=  ‘Residents’ expressed a preference for maintaining levels of spend in 10 of the 12 cost areas.
‘Tackling anti-social behaviour’ and ‘improved access to information/customer service were the only
exceptions to this.

=  Maintaining service levels was important for ‘voluntary and community’ and ‘business’ respondents
in 6 of the 12 cost areas.

=  ‘Voluntary and community’ and ‘business’ respondents expressed a preference for maintaining
spend in three cost areas; ‘refuse collection and recycling’, "housing advice, grants and
homelessness’ and "housing.’

Figure 3.2: Maintaining spend for 2018/19 on major cost areas by respondent group (%)

: Maintain
62%
Refuse collection/recycling 80%
55%
Parks, open spaces, street cleaning 36%
0%
51%
Housing advice, grants,homelessness 55%
Improving the economic, physical, - SLe
social,environmental condition of Tamworth 0% .
50%
Housing 36%
67%
51%
Events 36%
0%
48%
Business support/advice 36%
48%
Sports/Leisure 46%
48%
Grants for voluntary organisations/charities 9%
i - 46%
Commissioning services from voluntary o
organisations/charities .
41%
Tackling anti-social behaviour 50%
0%
Improved access to information/customer o Ee
services 0% s
Base: All respondents B Residents M Voluntary and community Business

When drawing conclusions from these responses, it is |mﬁ>§ écoiqsnember that the ‘business’ respondent group and the
‘voluntary and community’ group responses are considerably sMaller than the ‘residents’ response group, therefore results
may not be representative of their overall group.



3.3: Reduce levels of spending®
Reducing spend was generally a less popular option amongst respondent groups. There were some
differences in views illustrated in the graphic below.

=  Reducing spend was the second or third choice for each of the following cost centres by respondent
group; ‘residents’ (11 of the 12 cost centres), ‘voluntary and community’ (10 of the 12 cost centres)
and businesses (7 of the 12 cost centres).

=  Reducing spend for ‘improved access to information/customer services’ was important for both
‘residents’ and ‘voluntary and community’ respondents alike.

Figure 3.3: Reducing spend for 2018/19 on major cost areas by respondent group (%)

g Reduce
services -
38%
Business support/advice 46%
0%
Grants for voluntary organisations/charities | 0%
Commissioning services from voluntary 0 32
organisations/charities :
34%
Sports/Leisure 18%
33%
Housing 27%
28%
Events 36%
0%
27%
Housing advice, grants,homelessness 9%
- - - 15%
Improving the economic, physical, =
social,environmental condition of Tamworth 0%, .
9%
Parks, open spaces, street cleaning 27%
0%
10%
Refuse collection/recycling 10%
0%
Tackling anti-social behaviour | 0%
0%
Base: All respondents M Residents M Voluntary and community Business

6 . . [P ‘ . ’

When drawing conclusions from these responses, it is important to remember that the ‘business’ respondent group and the
‘voluntary and community’ group responses are considP@jg@aﬂ_&Gthan the ‘resident’ response group, therefore results
may not be representative of their overall group. 10



3.4: Increase levels of spending’
There were similarities but also differences in views by respondent group.

=  ‘Residents’ wanted to see increased level of spending in one cost area ‘tackling anti-social
behaviour’ whilst ‘voluntary and community’ respondents wanted increased spending in three cost
areas; ‘improving the economic, physical, social and environmental condition,” ‘grants for voluntary
organisations’ and ‘commissioning services from voluntary organisations.’

=  ‘Businesses’ wanted increased spend in 5 of the 12 cost areas; ‘events’, ‘parks, open spaces and
street cleaning,’ “tackling anti-social behaviour,” ‘improving the economic, physical, social and
environmental condition’ and ‘improved access to information/customer services.’

Figure 3.4: Increasing spend for 2018/19 on major cost areas by respondent group (%)

Increase
49%
Tackling anti-social behaviour 40%
36%
Parks, open spaces, street cleaning 27%
: : . 33%
Improving the economic, physical, —
social,environmental condition of Tamworth -
28%
Refuse collection/recycling | 0%
21%
Housing advice, grants,homelessness 27
0%
19%
Events &3
17%
Sports/Leisure 27%
13%
Housing 27%

o
&2

12%

Grants for voluntary organisations/charities 82%
0%

|

Commissioning services from voluntary

: ) o 73%
organisations/charities 0%
1%
Business support/advice K3
Improved access to information/customer ;:‘
services
Base: All respondents B Residents M Voluntary and community Business

When drawing conclusions from these responses, it is mp& éto:[e?nember that the ‘business’ respondent group and the
‘voluntary and community’ group responses are considerably smaller than the ‘residents’ response group, therefore results

may not be representative of their overall group.



3.5: Comments on council spend

39 responses on council spend have been analysed. 36 of these were from ‘residents’, two were from
‘voluntary and community’ respondents and one was from a ‘business.” Respondents commented on
many of the cost centres. Both themed and individual comments are illustrated below. Respondents
additionally raised wider questions on council spend. These included the need to “scrutinise budgets,”
undertake “service reviews/” ensure “efficient spend” and pay attention to “income generating services
and funding initiatives.” These views were echoed by ‘residents’, ‘voluntary and community’ and
‘businesses’ alike.

‘Residents’ comments

Parks, open spaces and street cleaning (7 responses)

This is one of the service areas most frequently identified for investment. Comments are reflective of this
and identify some areas where spend might be focused. ‘Residents’ expressed support for increased
provision of parks and open spaces so for example “children have somewhere to play especially on new
build estates.” Maintenance was also a view frequently echoed by those ‘residents’ commenting. For

”

example “footpaths are very uneven and not maintained,” “there are too many weeds” and “litter” is an
issue in some areas. More expenditure on street scene was supported to “help the service clean the

borough and keep the place tidy and looking smart.”

Refuse collection and recycling (6 comments)

A high proportion of respondents (63%) chose the option to maintain investment in this service area with
a further 26% choosing to increase spend. Comments identify issues with the service that might be
explored going forward. ‘Residents’ commenting on this cost centre most commonly mentioned the
green waste collection charges. This was not a popular initiative amongst those commenting. It was felt to
be “an extra tax on top of the council tax increase” and was not an approach which is being implemented
universally by all authorities. ‘Residents’ also questioned how funds from green waste collection were
now being spent. One ‘resident’ also complained that fortnightly bin collection is not enough, especially
during the warm, summer months.

Sports and leisure (6 comments)

‘Residents’ commenting on this cost centre recognised the importance of “preventing obesity” and
“investing in the health and wellbeing of the nation to bring about long term savings in health care.”
Respondents agreed that “sports development do a fantastic job at increasing physical activity with the
gym and summer activities covering all ages.” They also agreed that more should be spent on health
initiatives. For example, “I attend the referral gym and it’s a fantastic and unique facility but could do with
being bigger,” some “fun free water play in the park for the children in the summer” would also be
appreciated by one parent.

Tackling anti social behaviour (5 comments)
Half of respondents (50%) identified this service area as one where spend might be increased and
comments identify the nature and impact of some of the anti social behaviour issues that might be

” VA4

addressed. Concerns included “drug dealing,” “drug use”, “drinking”, “drinking/driving” and “anti-social
noise.” These ‘residents’ felt intimidated and were fearful of going outside. They also feared for their

children going outside either alone or with friends.

Page 18

12



Improving the economic, physical, social and environmental condition of Tamworth (5 comments)
Overall, 1 in 3 respondents (34%) identified this as an area for increased spend. The following comments
reveal some of the areas where investment might be targeted. ‘Residents’ supported a town centre plan

”

which makes it “a place to be for small business rather than a place not to be.” “Please support local start
up businesses by lowering rates payable until shops have been able to build up a customer base. Low pay

was an associated concern echoed by one ‘resident” who was “struggling to pay the bills and had not had
a pay rise since 1998.” For the physical environment, ‘residents’ expressed the need for “road works and

urgent repairs” and for the social condition, one ‘resident’ cited the need for improved “community

spirit” to “help the town centre grow again.”

One response was also received from ‘residents’ about each of the following cost centres:
Housing: “We have loads of houses up for sale and empty. Why not renovate those instead of using up
green belt land, put houses on sites that are disused.”

Housing advice/grants and homelessness: “How about converting the library into sheltered housing for
the homeless/ emergency accommodation? The well off can look after themselves, but the vulnerable will
always need your help.”

”

Events: “Increase spending for Tamworth arts and events department.” “l would love to see a
continuation of the gateway project, a Gibbs and Canning statue on the Glascote Cemetery roundabout to

further celebrate the towns heritage.”

Grants for voluntary organisations and charities: One ‘resident’ felt that the Council could help
volunteer groups by offering use of their “meeting rooms at reduced prices.”

Additional comments which have risk implications for particular vulnerable groups are illustrated below:

=  “Asadisabled driver | park in Little Church Lane in a disabled space on the left/alongside the houses.
To the right of said space the weeds are such that it is increasingly difficult to park without being
outside of yellow line. Can this be cut back urgently?”

=  “Clear leaves which become extremely slippery and cause accident risk to children on a school run.”

=  “Streets also need better clearance in the winter with ice and snow which leave side roads just
dangerous.”

Page 19

13



‘Voluntary and community’ comments

Two ‘voluntary and community’ respondents also commented on the costs centres. Their opinions

echoed sentiments previously expressed by ‘residents’ and also introduced some new ones. These are

illustrated below:

=

=

Parks open spaces and street cleaning: Have less emphasis on flower displays in the town centre
Housing: remove areas of neglect in the estates.

Improved access to information and customer services: Ensure that residents can meet council
officers face to face not via the telephone.

Tackling anti-social behaviour: Street wardens to actually patrol all areas of Tamworth and not
just those that may be trouble free.

Improving the economic, physical, social and environmental condition of Tamworth: Work with
the County Council to report dangerous potholes, improve the Council controlled car parks and
invest in public toilets.

Business comments

One ‘business’ respondent also shared the comments documented below.

=

Improving the economic, physical, social and environmental condition of Tamworth: Invest in
improving the attractiveness of the town to attract good businesses, reward businesses who take
pride in their properties, prioritise attracting successful, high-end, international companies to
enable the town to flourish.

Business support and advice: Start up businesses should be supported but established and
expanding businesses should be prioritised as they have more disposable capital to spend on the
area and maintain the appearance of their establishments (thus the town) to a better level.
Housing: Reduce the ‘put off factors’ like council houses, to attract good businesses.

Page 20

14



3.6: Savings and reducing costs®

Respondents were provided with a list of services and asked to indicate up to three for savings or reduced
costs. Responses are broadly consistent with the overall assessment presented in figure 3.1 where the
majority of respondents (51%) chose to spend less on ‘improved access to information/customer
services,” but a much lower proportion chose to spend less on ‘refuse and recycling’ (10%), ‘parks and
open spaces’ (10%) and ‘tackling anti-social behaviour’ (8%).

It was most common for respondents to indicate that they would like to see savings or reduced costs in
‘improved access to information/customer services.” Respondents were least likely to want savings made
to ‘refuse and recycling,” ‘tackling anti-social behaviour’ and ‘parks, open spaces and street cleaning.’
Preferences for saving/reducing costs by respondent group are illustrated below and in the graphic
overleaf.

Figure 3.5: Which THREE services should the Council look at if they had to make savings or reduce costs? (%)
Improved access to information/customer services 56%
Business support and advice 42%
Voluntary sector commissioning 40%
Voluntary sector grants 37%
Events 32%
Sports and leisure 31%
Housing advice, grants and homelessness 1 7%

Housing 13%

Improving the economic, physical, social and
environmental condition of Tamworth

10%

[90]

Parks, open spaces and street cleaning

|

%

Tackling anti-social behaviour

Refuse collection and recycling 24 Base: all respondents

=  All groups prioritised savings for ‘improved access to information/customer services’. This was
ranked within the top three priorities for savings across all three respondent groups.

=  ‘Resident’ and ‘community’ respondents prioritised savings to ‘business support and advice’ (this
was in both groups top three priorities for saving).

=  Both ‘residents’ and ‘businesses’ prioritised reductions in ‘voluntary sector grants’ and ‘voluntary
sector commissioning.’ These were within the top four priorities for reduction amongst both
groups.

8 When drawing conclusions from these responses, it is important to remember that the ‘business’ respondent group and the
‘voluntary and community’ group responses are considerably smaller than the ‘residents’ response group, therefore results
may not be representative of their overall group. Page 21

15



Looking at figures 3.3 and 3.6, ‘businesses’ and ‘voluntary and community’ respondents appear to be
divided on sector lines. ‘Residents’ appear to be more interested in investment that has tangible impact in
their community/local environment rather than with investment in ‘business support and advice,’
‘voluntary sector commissioning’ and ‘improved access to information/customer services.’

Figure 3.6: Which THREE services should the Council look at if they had to make savings or reduce costs by respondent group (%)

56%
Improved access to information/customer services 55%

42%

Voluntary sector commissioning 0%

40% N
Business support and advice 73%
0%

39%
Voluntary sector grants 0%

32%
Sports and leisure 18%

o
5

32%
Events 45%

o
8

18%
Housing advice, grants and homelessness &34

12%
Housing . 27%

0
o

Improving the economic, physical, social and environmental condition of
Tamworth

(=]
®

Parks, open spaces and street cleaning

o
°
&

~
52

»®

Tackling anti-social behaviour

==
T

%

Refuse collection and recycling

o
°
&

b (]
32

Base: all respondents B Residents M Voluntary and community Business

Comments about reducing costs or services

15 comments from ‘residents,” ‘voluntary and community’ and ‘businesses’ have been analysed. Remarks
included that all services were “good” but ‘residents’ reiterated the need to “review expenditure” across
the board seeking “efficiency” in overall spend and other ways of continuing provision. ‘Residents’ also
recognised the need to focus on “core activities.” Comments on specific services from all three groups are
illustrated below and referenced by respondent type.

Business support and advice (3 responses)

Views shared illustrated a wide range of viewpoints and included; “as a resident, advice to wealth
creating businesses that start up in town to aid economic regeneration is a key expectation | have of
Tamworth Borough Council” and “reducing business support/advice is not going to save a huge amount
based on your figures, | think a lot of the information is available from other sources” and “surely business
support and information should not come from local public money?”

Voluntary sector grants/commissioning (3 responses)

‘Residents’ commenting sought clarification on the “differences” between voluntary sector grants and
commissioning and wanted an explanation of financial decisions in relation to both. They also sought
examples of what can be “achieved using volunteers.”

Page 22

16



‘Residents’ also raised questions specific to grants or commissioning. These included; instead of “draining
council funds,” voluntary services could “access money from lottery funding, Princes Trust and other

v

similar schemes,” “grants should be reduced to able bodied people or those who are working,” “financial
management would be more useful advice given” and “if commissioning the voluntary sector to cover
various services the grants could be reduced.” One ‘voluntary and community’ respondent also asked
whether “community pay back volunteers or volunteers in general could cover more roles,” for example

looking after parks and open spaces.

Improving access to information/customer services (2 responses)

One ‘resident’ expressed the opinion that spend on this cost centre “seemed expensive.” Especially
considering people can increasingly use their “own technology” to access services. These ‘residents’
sought understanding of what “improvements” would be proposed to assess whether spend was
worthwhile.

Sports and leisure (2 responses)

These responses illustrate that there can be a split in opinion, so continuing the conversation about
priorities could be helpful. The diverse views expressed by these ‘residents’ included “sports, leisure and
events being a luxury which needs to be reduced. At least until Britain is back on its feet after reducing the
deficit.” An alternative view of sports and leisure facilities as income generators was illustrated; “they
raise money, they get money from gyms, hall hire and classes.”

Events (2 responses)
“Events are nice” but the council spends “way too much on the flower displays around town.” These
residents felt the Council should get “more sponsorship for events.”

Improving the economic, physical, social and environmental condition of Tamworth (2 response)

This theme was discussed by one ‘resident’ who prioritised the safety and condition of Tamworth but felt
this could be “funded in other ways.” One ‘business’ respondent voiced the opinion that “raising the
profile of the town should be prioritised.” “Focus on businesses who actually understand their own role in
making the town more affluent.”

Housing advice, grants and homelessness (1 response)
This respondent wanted costs on homelessness kept to “a minimum to free up spending for other

”

departments where its most needed.” “The public can choose to help by giving food and money in the

street should they wish to do so.”

Page 23

17



3.7: Which TWO income areas do you think the Council could/should increase and decrease charges for?

Increase charges
It was common for respondents to accept increases in public charges for ‘leisure and other activities’ (57%)
and ‘public spaces’ (53%).

Figure 3.7: Increasing charges for income areas

Leisure and +
other-activity

INCREASE CHARGES Public spaces

Views from all respondent groups are illustrated in the graph below.

Figure 3.8: Which TWO of the below income areas do you
think the Council should increase charges for (%)

57% |

Public charges for leisure and other
activity 50%

Public spaces 40%

40%

Commercial proper‘ty m

23%
Waste management W‘ s

19%
el parking
0%

O All respondents Residents B Community and voluntary B Business

Respondents comments are themed below. Overall, these reflect a genuine reluctance for increases in
charges because of the impact on vulnerable people, as well as residents and businesses in general. ‘Car
parking’ featured most prominently in these comments. 31 comments have been analysed, 30 from

‘residents’, also one ‘voluntary and community’ response.

Car parking (16 responses)

These ‘residents’ voiced strong opposition to increases in car parking charges. “Charging for car parking is
killing the town centre”, “car parking in the town should be free to help businesses,” “do not increase car
parking fees due to Ventura Park offering free parking. It is already deterring people from visiting the town
centre” and “there should be more disabled car spaces in Tamworth BUT more should be done against the

misuse of these spaces.”

Waste management (6 responses)

‘Residents’ confirmed they “accept some of the argument that green bin charges are fairer as some residents
have no garden, though the charge does seem too high if you use the green bin infrequently.” Another
‘resident’ expressed the viewpoint that it was “too soon to ask the people of Tamworth for more
contributions for waste management you need to let the green bin charge settle in first.” Two ‘residents’
voiced the need to tackle dumping; “we are beginning to see green waste being dumped because of the
charge” and if the Council “just came and co//ec[_tfg énewTAed items then people would not just dump them

anywhere.”
18



Commercial and property (5 responses)
‘Residents’ “first instinct would be to charge extra for commercial property but given that the town has a

”

lot of empty properties and shops it would likely make the situation worse.” “Fill the empty properties by
offering competitive rates which gets businesses into the town centre and creates money. Rent out more
empty commercial property at lower prices and you have more income in both rent and rates.” “We must

not raise charges on commercial property or anything that throttles wealth creation and employment.”

Leisure and other activities (2 responses)

One ‘resident’ expressed the view that “income for leisure and other activity seems very low.” Another
echoed this viewpoint suggesting small charges for leisure activities. “There could be a small cost on the
fireworks night to enter the castle grounds, even if its just £2 per person that would bring in revenue.”

Public spaces (1 response)
According to one resident, “we need more spent on public spaces as some estate areas are very
neglected.”

An additional response was received from one ‘voluntary and community’ respondent who had found the
guestion on increasing charges difficult to answer; “you need more people to use the town centre and if
you reduce the amenities people won't use the town and if you increase cost people will not be able to
afford to use the town.”

Page 25

19



Decrease charges
Respondents were most likely to want decreased charges in car parking. This was important to both
‘residents’ and ‘businesses’ as illustrated in the graph below.

Figure 3.10: Which TWO of the below income areas do

. . o
Figure 3.9: Decreasing charges for income areas (%) you think the Council should decrease charges for (%)

65% |

» J Car parking 13%
1 67%
DECREASE : e .
- ED
Car parklng Commercial property 38%
67%
41%
34 comments on decreased charges were
Waste management
analysed, 32 ‘residents’ and two ‘business’ 0%
responses. Car parking featured in the L 2% |
. . Public charges for leisure and other activity 63%
comments which are illustrated below.

18%
FuBlEpaces

0%

] | Byl den o i d volu 15in
Commercial property (12 responses) O All respondents Residents  m Community and voluntary  m Business

11 residents and one business

‘Commercial property’ featured most prominently in the comments with ‘residents’ reiterating many of
the comments already documented in the consultation. These included the importance of “reducing rates
to attract more businesses into the town centre.” This could “generate more income and encourage more
visitors.” ‘Residents’ also suggested improving “the appearance of industrial sites to make them look more
inviting to new businesses.” One ‘business’ also suggested “decreases in commercial property charges
would encourage start ups to grow into small businesses, and small businesses to become medium
businesses” and “finding the right property at the right price for expansion is difficult here.”

Waste management (12 responses)

The new chargeable green waste collection service also featured in ‘residents’ ‘waste management’
comments. Comments included; “I really object to the green bin collection fee” and “the majority of
people do not want it - green waste goes into black bins and onto landfill” and “how about making a
charge of £20 for a 6 month period (March to September) and £36 for the whole year? | didn't pay the
charge for the simple reason that | do not have my green bin emptied from October to February.”
‘Residents’ commenting on ‘waste management’ also reiterated concerns that charges for green waste
and bulky waste encourage “fly tipping which is expensive to rectify.”

Car parking (10 responses)

9 residents and one business

‘Residents’ expressed support for reduced charges to attract residents and visitors into the town centre.
For example “I have strong beliefs that car parking in the town centre should be 100% free. This seems so

7
C

straight forward to achieve the towns regeneration which you talk about so often,” “cheaper car parking
would bring in more visitors to the commercial property area” and “free night time parking to boost the
night time economy.” One ‘business’ also suggested “cheaper/free car parking for businesses should be
granted.” “Perhaps a ‘registered Tamworth business’ card could be left on the dashboard whilst parked to

allow free parking?”

Page 26

20



4. COUNCIL TAX INCREASE FOR 2019/20 BUDGET

4.1: What would you consider to be an acceptable Council Tax increase for the 2019/20 budget?
70% of ‘residents’ would prefer the lowest levels of increase. 44% selected option A, a 0.6% increase and

26% selected option B, a 2.0% increase. The maximum increase of 3.0% (option E) was the third most

popular option with 15% of ‘residents’.

Figure 4.1: What would you consider to be an acceptable Council Tax increase for the 2019/20 budget?

Option D,
2.9% increase*

Option A, Option B, Option C, Option E,
0.6% increase* 2.0% increase* 2.5% increase* 3.0% increase*

A N A
- ~ % YO

3%

*Increases shown are based on a Band D property Base: all residents

Page 27

21



5. WHERE DO YOU THINK THE COUNCIL COULD MAKE SAVINGS?

Respondents were encouraged to identify new opportunities for savings. Some respondents reiterated
ideas already expressed earlier in this report. New ideas, not previously acknowledged are documented
below.

=  “Keep appealing to central government about our boundaries and seek the Council Tax that should
rightly be allocated to Tamworth.”

=  “Sell off town centre properties which are poorly maintained.”

=  “Convert empty shops in the town centre into places to live to generate income, improve the
appearance of the town centre and to help with the housing shortage.”

=  “Consider merging with Lichfield District Council.”

= “Bring services in house or better manage value for money in contractors.”

=  “Introduce more digital services to save staff time/money.”

=  “Move to smaller, more cost effective offices.”

=  “Make better use of Council owned buildings and rent spaces out to other organisations.”
=  “Offer meeting rooms for external functions.”

=  “Review policies and processes e.qg. final salary pensions, expenses, paper/equipment etc.”
=  “Review staff/councillors roles.”

=  “Seek collection of all council taxes from debtors.”

Page 28

22



6. MAKING TAMWORTH BETTER FOR BUSINESS

Respondents who completed the questionnaire from the perspective of a local ‘business’ were asked to
provide their opinions and comment on a number of ‘business’ related questions in order to gather a
picture of how Tamworth can be made better for them.’

Three ‘businesses’ responded to the survey. While there are only a small number of responses from this
group, there are some useful suggestions which can be taken forward on behalf of the participating
businesses. This section explores the questions they were asked and illustrates the responses given.

6.1: Business type and location
Of the ‘businesses’ that responded to the consultation, two were based in a "town centre location’ and
one was based 'out of town.’

The status of the companies were as follows; ‘an independent business with no other branches’, ‘a head
office’ and ‘a branch or subsidiary of a larger company.’

When asked to disclose the main reasons why their business was based in Tamworth, respondents
selected each of the following answers; the ‘nature of the local economy’, the ‘proximity to customers,’
the ‘nature of the site/premises’, the ‘cost of the site/premises’, the ‘access to public transport’, the
‘transport links” and ‘live in the area’ (one response each).

6.2: Future business needs

‘Businesses’ were asked to indicate whether their current premises were likely to be suitable for their
future needs. One ‘business’ said ‘yes’ and two said ‘no’. Two of the ‘businesses’ ‘saw themselves
expanding’ within the next two years and one would like to ‘relocate’.

‘Businesses’ were asked to identify what they felt were the main barriers to expansion. Barriers amongst
these respondents included; ‘availability of suitable premises’ (two responses), ‘ability to expand’ (two
responses). Also ‘cost of business rates’, ‘affordability of premises,” ‘parking capacity,” ‘opportunity to
expand’ and ‘local access to necessary skills’ (one response each).

Respondents were invited to indicate up to five priorities which could assist businesses and the economy
and help to improve Tamworth. They were able to select their priorities from a list of 15 potential
priorities. Respondents selected eight of the fifteen priorities and responses to these are documented
below.

‘Improving the local environment’ (three responses)

‘Improving litter/street cleanliness’ (three responses)

‘Provide more networking opportunities’ (three responses)
‘Reducing the number of empty business premises’ (two responses)
‘Provide more employment land’ (one response)

‘Reduce business rates and other charges’ (one response)

‘Improve training and skills’ (one response)

L | N

‘The provision of parking spaces’ (one response)

?Business responses have not been statistically analysed by type as the number of responses does not allow this. When
drawing conclusions from business responses, it is importigt to rembeer that business group responses are relatively

small and therefore results may not be representative of the@g/gra group.

23



7. VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY SERVICES ORGANISATIONS

Those respondents who completed the ‘voluntary and community’ organisation questionnaire were asked
to comment on both their organisational structure and the impacts of the public sector cuts upon their
organisations and their clients. In total, eleven ‘voluntary and community’ responses were received.”

7.1:Type of organisation

Four of the ‘voluntary and community’ respondents described themselves as ‘registered charities.” Two
responses were also received for each of the following categories; ‘community interest company’,
‘voluntary group’ and ‘community group’. One respondent also described themselves as a ‘limited company
by guarantee.’

7.2: The impact of budget cuts and the economic downturn on the services provided by ‘voluntary and
community’ organisations

Organisations were invited to answer ‘yes’ or ‘no’ to a range of questions about the impact of the budget
cuts and the economic downturn. All ‘voluntary and community’ respondents (100%) agreed their service
users had been affected by the cuts. More than half had been impacted by each of the five elements
illustrated below.

Figure 7.1: ‘Voluntary and community’ organisations responses to a range of questions about the impact of budget cuts and
the economic downturn (%)

In your view are the public sector cuts affecting your service users? 100%

Has there been an increased demand for the services your organisation
provides since the public sector cuts began in 20107

82%

Do you anticipate an impact on your income for 2018/19 as a result of
the public sector cuts?

73%

Has the number of services your organisation is able to provide 64%
changed in comparison to 2017/18? e

Was your income for 2017/18 affected by the public sector cuts? 55%

W Yes No Base Number : 11

Organisations were encouraged to explain how their organisation and their service users had been impacted
by the economic downturn. Their responses have been summarised below.

7.3: Impact on organisation

‘Voluntary and community’ responses indicate that services have been in great demand but have faced
limited capacity to support e.g. “fewer subsidies can be offered to families in need for learning and
diversionary activities” and therefore “fewer people are able to access them.” One organisation had
broadened their support to include children and family focused organisations and had focused their efforts
on securing greater support for local groups e.g. “in securing additional funding/more volunteers.” A few
organisations had struggled to find suitable venues since the Council closures.

%\When drawing conclusions from community and volupary servg@organisaﬁons, it is important to remember that the
e

base number of responses is small and therefore result ma\g1 t epresentative of the sector overall.

24



7.4: Impact on service users

Responses indicated that groups from within the sector are “seeking to do their very best to mitigate the
negative impact of a loss of service by filling gaps/maintaining services where they are able to.” “The
sector now provides and runs many more services from universal services such as youth, libraries to
earliest help and intervention, tier 2 and tier 2+.”

However, “demand for services is high” and some users are “unable to access the help and support
required for them to enjoy a normal existence.” For example, “families with local socio-economic status
often have less family engagement with outdoors and less active lifestyles. If these activities are not
subsidised, some families are even less likely to try them and less likely to learn how to use their local
outdoor spaces for recreation and learning.”

Page 31

25



8. RESIDENT RESPONDENT PROFILE

Are you male or female?

Female

Male

Prefer not
to say

Survey

responses

67

7

44%

5%

What is your age?

Tamworth
MYE 2017

Tamworth MYE

2017

18-24
25-34
35-44
45-54
55-64
65-74
75+

Prefer not to say

No’s

2
11
19
16
38
45
14

5

%

1%
7%
13%
11%
25%
30%
9%
3%

%

10%
17%
16%
19%
16%
14%

9%

What is your ethnicity?

Tamworth

Survey

2011 census
responses :
comparison

Asian/Asian British
(including Chinese)

Black/Black British 1 0.7%
Mixed Heritage 1 0.7%
White British and 137 92%
other white groups

Other 0 0%
Prefer not to say 9 6%

Do you consider yourself to have a disability?

Tamworth 2011
census

Survey

responses .
comparison

No
Prefer 10 7%

not to say
Ward
Ward No’s % Population Estimates Ward No’s % Population Estimates
mid 2016 (18+) mid 2016 (18+)

Amington 20 17% 10% Mercian 10 9% 9%

Belgrave 13 11% 10% Spital 8 7% 9%

Bolehall 18 15% 10% Stonydelph 9 8% 10%

Castle 12 10% 10% Trinity 10 9% 10%

Glascote 7 6% 10% Wilnecote 10 9% 12%

Page 32

26



9. COMBINED TABLES OF RESULTS

For the following services, do you think we should spend more, the same or less?

Survey responses

More Same Less No opinion

Sports and Leisure 18% 47% 33% 2%
Events 20% 49% 28% 3%
Refuse collection and recycling 26% 63% 10% 1%
Parks and open spaces and street cleaning 37% 52% 10% 1%
Tackling anti-social behaviour 50% 41% 8% 2%
Improving the economic, physical, social and 34% 50% 15% 1%
environmental condition of Tamworth

Grants for voluntary organisations and charities 16% 45% 36% 2%
Commissioning services from voluntary 15% 44% 35% 6%
organisations and charities

Housing 14% 49% 33% 4%
Housing advice, grants and homelessness 21% 52% 26% 1%
Business support and advice 11% 48% 38% 4%
Improved access to information/customer service 9% 38% 51% 3%

From the services listed below, if the Council had to make savings or reduce costs, which services do you
think we should look at. Please select THREE.

Survey responses

Sports and leisure 31% Voluntary sector grants 37%
Events 32% Voluntary sector commissioning 40%
Refuse collection and recycling 4% Housing 13%
Parks, open spaces & street cleaning 8% Housing advice, grants & homelessness 17%
Tackling anti-social behaviour 7% Business support and advice 42%
Improving the economic, physical, social & 10% Improved access to information/customer 56%
environmental condition of Tamworth services

think the Council could/should increase? Council could/should decrease charges?
Survey Survey
responses responses
Car parking (£800,000) 19% Car parking (£800,000) 65%
Public charges for leisure and 57% Public charges for leisure and other 24%
other activity (£400,000) activity (£400,000)
Waste management (£796,000) 23% Waste management (£796,000) 41%
Public spaces (£651,000) 53% Public spaces (£651,000) 18%
Commercial property (£1,527,000) 40% Pagend8cial property (£1,527,000) 43%

27
'7 Residents, Businesses and Community and Voluntary Organisations results combined



10: RESIDENTS TABLES OF RESULTS

For the following services, do you think we should spend more, the same or less!?

Survey responses

Sports and Leisure
Events
Refuse collection and recycling

Parks and open spaces and street cleaning

Tackling anti-social behaviour

Improving the economic, physical, social and
environmental condition of Tamworth

Grants for voluntary organisations and
charities

Commissioning services from voluntary
organisations and charities

Housing
Housing advice, grants and homelessness
Business support and advice

Improved access to information/customer
service

More Same Less No opinion
17% 48% 34% 1%
19% 51% 28% 2%
28% 62% 10% 1%
36% 55% 9% -
49% 41% 9% 1%
33% 51% 15% 1%
12% 48% 39% 1%
11% 46% 37% 6%
13% 50% 33% 4%
21% 51% 27% 1%
11% 48% 38% 3%

7% 39% 51% 3%

From the services listed below, if the Council had to make savings or reduce costs, which services do you

think we should look at. Please select THREE.

Survey responses

Sports and leisure

Events

Refuse collection and recycling

Parks, open spaces and street cleaning
Tackling anti-social behaviour

Improving the economic, physical, social and

32% Voluntary sector grants 39%
32% Voluntary sector commissioning 42%
3% Housing 12%
8% Housing advice, grants and homelessness 18%
7% Business support and advice 40%
9% Improved access to information/ 56%

Which TWO of the below income areas do you
think the Council could/should increase?

Which TWO of the below income areas do you think the
Council could/should decrease charges ?

Survey Survey
responses responses

Car parking (£800,000) 19% Car parking (£800,000) 68%

Public charges for leisure and 58% Public charges for leisure and other 21%

other activity (£400,000) activity (£400,000)

Waste management (£796,000) 24% Waste management (£796,000) 42%

Public spaces (£651,000) 53% Pag é’u\%l& spaces (£651,000) 17%

Commercial property (£1,527,000) 40% Commercial property (£1,527,000) 42% 28




What would you consider to be an acceptable Council Tax increase for the 2019/2020 budget?

Survey responses Survey responses
Option A (0.6%) 44% Option D (2.9%) 3%
Option B (2.0%) 26% Option E (3.0%) 15%
Option C (2.5%) 12%
Page 35

29



| 1: BUSINESS TABLES OF RESULTS

Which of the following best describes your business location?

Survey responses

Town centre location 2 A local neighbourhood area 0
Out of town location 1 Based at home 0
Industrial estate 0 Other

Out of town shopping park 0

What is the status of your company at this location?

Su rvey responses

Independent with no other branches 1 Public sector organisation 0
Head office 1 Other 0
Branch or subsidiary of a larger group 1

What are the main reasons why your company is based here?

SUI‘VGY responses

Availability of suitable workforce 0 Availability of local facilities 0
Nature of local economy 1 Access to public transport 1
Proximity of suppliers 0 Availability of Broadband 0
Proximity to customers 1 Transport links 1
Quality of the environment 0 Live in the area 1
Nature of the site/premises 1 Other

Cost of the site/premises 1

Are the premises suitable for your current  What are your company's intentions with regard to this

or likely future needs? location?
Survey Survey responses
responses
Yes 1 Expand 2 Stay the same 0
No 2 Contract 0 Relocate 1

In your opinion, what are the barriers to business expansion? (Please select three)

Survey responses

Cost of business rates 1 Ability to expand 2
Affordability of premises 1 Opportunities to expand 1
Parking capacity 1 Local access to necessary skills 1
Availability of suitable premises Page”SGSS to finance 0
Cost of rent 0 Other 0 30




How can Tamworth be improved to assist businesses and the economy? We need your top five priorities
from the examples given below, or if not listed tell us what they are by completing 'other'?

Survey responses

Provide more employment land 1 Improve training and skills 1
Provide more housing 0 The provision of parking spaces 1
Improve road network 0 Reducing number of empty business premises 2
Improve public transport 0 Improving litter/street cleanliness 3
Improve the local environment 3 Provide more support for business start up 0
Improve Broadband connections 0 Provide more opportunities for business 0
growth

Reduce business rates and other 1 Provide more networking opportunities 3
charges

Provide more business advice 0 Other 0

For the following services, do you think we should spend more, the same or less?

Su rvey responses

More Same Less No opinion
Sports and Leisure 33% 33% 33% 0%
Events 100% 0% 0% 0%
Refuse collection and recycling 33% 67% 0% 0%
Parks and open spaces and street cleaning 100% 0% 0% 0%
Tackling anti-social behaviour 100% 0% 0% 0%
Improving the economic, physical, social and 100% 0% 0% 0%
environmental condition of Tamworth
Grants for voluntary organisations and 0% 67% 33% 0%
charities
Commissioning services from voluntary 0% 67% 33% 0%
organisations and charities
Housing 0% 67% 33% 0%
Housing advice, grants and homelessness 0% 67% 33% 0%
Business support and advice 33% 67% 0% 0%
Improved access to information/customer 67% 0% 33% 0%
service

Page 37



From the services listed below, if the Council had to make savings or reduce costs, which services do you
think we should look at. Please select THREE.

Survey responses

Sports and leisure 0% Voluntary sector grants 100%
Events 0% Voluntary sector commissioning 67%
Refuse collection and recycling 0% Housing 33%
Parks, open spaces and street cleaning 0% Housing advice, grants and homelessness 33%
Tackling anti-social behaviour 0% Business support and advice 0%
Improving the economic, physical, social and 0% Improved access to information/ 67%
environmental condition of Tamworth customer services

Which TWO of the below income areas do you  YVhich TWO of the below income areas do you think the

think the Council could/should increase? Council could/should decrease charges ?
Survey Survey
responses responses
Car parking (£800,000) 0% Car parking (£800,000) 67%
Public charges for leisure and 67% Public charges for leisure and other 67%
other activity (£400,000) activity (£400,000)
Waste management (£796,000) 33% Waste management (£796,000) 0%
Public spaces (£651,000) 67% Public spaces (£651,000) 0%
Commercial property (£1,527,000) 33% Commercial property (£1,527,000) 67%
Page 38

32



12: COMMUNITY AND VOLUNTARY ORGANISATION RESULTS

What type of organisation are you? Has the number of services your organisation is

able to provide changed in comparison to
2017/18?

A registered charity 36%

Survey responses

Company limited by guarantee 9% y P

Community interest company 18% Yes 64%

Voluntary group 18% No 36%

i 189 .
Community group 8% Has there been an increased demand for the
Other 0% services your organisation provides since the

. . 5
Was your income for 2017/18 affected by public sector cuts began in 2010

the public sector cuts?

Survey responses

Survey responses

Yes 82%
Yes 55% No 18%
No 46%

In your view are the public sector cuts affecting
Do you anticipate an impact on your income for your service users?

2018/19 as a result of the public sector cuts?

Survey responses

Survey responses

Yes 100%
No 0%

Yes 73%
No 27%

For the following services, do you think we should spend more, the same or less?

Survey responses

More Same Less No opinion

Sports and Leisure 27% 46% 18% 9%
Events 9% 36% 36% 18%
Refuse collection and recycling 0% 80% 10% 10%
Parks and open spaces and street cleaning 27% 36% 27% 9%
Tackling anti-social behaviour 40% 50% 0% 10%
Improving the economic, physical, social & 36% 36% 18% 9%
environmental condition of Tamworth

Grants for voluntary organisations & charities 82% 9% 0% 9%
Commissioning services from voluntary 73% 18% 0% 9%
organisations & charities

Housing 27% 36% 27% 9%
Housing advice, grants and homelessness 27% 55% 9% 9%
Business support and advice Page 39 36% 46% 9%
Improved access to information/customer services 9% 27% 55% 9%




From the services listed below, if the Council had to make savings or reduce costs, which services do you
think we should look at. Please select THREE.

Survey Survey

responses responses
Sports and leisure 18% Voluntary sector grants 0%
Events 45% Voluntary sector commissioning 0%
Refuse collection and recycling 18% Housing 27%
Parks, open spaces and street cleaning 9% Housing advice, grants and homelessness 9%
Tackling anti-social behaviour 0% Business support and advice 73%
Improving the economic, physical, social and 27% Improved access to information/customer 55%
environmental condition of Tamworth services

Which TWO of the below income areas do you think the

Which TWO of the below income areas do you

think the Council could/should increase? Council could/should decrease charges ?
Survey Survey
responses responses
Car parking (£800,000) 30% Car parking (£800,000) 13%
Public charges for leisure and 50% Public charges for leisure and other 63%
other activity (£400,000) activity (£400,000)
Waste management (£796,000) 10% Waste management (£796,000) 38%
Public spaces (£651,000) 40% Public spaces (£651,000) 38%
Commercial property (£1,527,000) 50% Commercial property (£1,527,000) 38%
Page 40

34



CABINET Agenda ltem 7

THURSDAY, 8 NOVEMBER 2018

REPORT OF THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR HERITAGE AND GROWTH

TOWN CENTRE

EXEMPT INFORMATION
None

PURPOSE

To seek approval to put in place a formal programme management approach and structure that will
prioritise action by the Council to improve Tamworth Town Centre. Approval to develop a Town Centre
Strategy is also sought to assist in identifying areas of weakness and potential failure with a focussed,
co-ordinated response that will seek to improve the vitality and viability of the town centre for years to
come. The town centre strategy will need to show how the Council can achieve a clear vision for the
future to achieve maximum potential from the town centre and set guidelines for working together to
deliver change.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Approve the production of a Town Centre Strategy covering the topics indicated in the report
for future consideration and adoption by Cabinet.

2. Approve a Programme management approach to delivery of town centre activity and projects
as detailed in the report.

3. Approve the creation of a 5 year programme budget and retained fund using existing budgets
as detailed in the report.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The look and feel of town centres is in the process of undergoing fundamental change as a result of
global and national changes to the economy. The impacts and causes have been well documented
elsewhere but include the rise of internet shopping, increased costs to retailers leading to closure of
national chain stores and a lack of new entrants to the marketplace. Tamworth town centre is no
different in being impacted by these changes.

The Council spends significant resource already on providing services in the town centre, organising
and hosting events, running attractions such as the Castle and Assembly Rooms, supporting local
businesses and providing housing.

Given the increasing speed of change, leading to a risk of significant decline of the town centre,
coupled with reduced resources that local authorities have at their disposal, it is proposed that the
Council should develop a Strategy to guide its activity and put in place the appropriate governance
and programme management approach to ensure it maximises the effectiveness and efficiency of its
actions.

OPTIONS CONSIDERED
The report sets out the range of activities that the Council delivers within the town centre. These
arrangements relating to project development and delivery could continue outside of a formal

Page 41



programme and strategy. However, this approach is deemed to be inefficient as projects may not align
with corporate objectives and operate without robust control mechanisms. In the absence of a ‘big
picture’ there is an opportunity cost in failing to co-ordinate projects that could save resources and
deliver wider impacts through merger, better targeting and timing. Furthermore, there is a risk that
projects are approved and resources allocated where had the strategy been in place, they would have
been rejected on the basis that they do not fully deliver the necessary objectives.

The Tamworth Corporate Strategy and Tamworth Borough Council Local Plan 2006-2031 both refer to
a town centre strategy being required to help regenerate the town centre and better capitalise on the
town centre asset. It is therefore acknowledged that there is a need for such a strategy and the
passage of time adds to this pressure.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

In order to create the Town Centre Strategy by the end of March 2019, external resource will be
brought in through the use of existing budgets. This is to reduce the amount of internal resource
required and ensure that best practice from other areas is harnessed.

In order to support additional Council activity in the Town Centre it is proposed that a number of
retained funds and currently available budgets be pooled for a 5 year period. These budgets will then
be made available for internal teams only to “bid” into, as long as they are additional to current
activity. It is an essential part of programme delivery that a 5 year timeframe be set for budgets in this
case to allow stability and flexibility for projects. It is the nature of programme and project
management that changes occur on a regular and unpredictable basis and there needs to be a strong
level of confidence that if a project slips or is reprioritised, that the funding is still available to progress
other streams.

The budget virements required are shown below.

Revenue Budgets

There are a number of annual budgets across the authority that it is proposed to be combined to
create a greater impact and effect on the Town. It is proposed these be combined into one pot, under
account code GY0202 for a five year period. Given the nature of the likely spend, there may be
occasions where projects cross over financial years or monies may be held back to support larger
spend projects in the following financial year. It is therefore proposed that any underspend is placed in
a specific town centre retained fund for draw down when required subject to Section 151 Officer
agreement.

It should be noted that current spend on these budgets, such as the annual visitor guide, will be
considered on a case by case basis alongside other projects to ensure the Council can maximise its
impact on town centre activity. It should also be recognised that the budget mentioned below,
currently used for marketing and promotion, be excluded from budgets which are being considered
separately as part of the place investment work. The proposed budgets to be amalgamated are:

Title Account Code Budget Code Budget to be

utilised

Conservation GS0401 30404 £6,000
Grants

Distribution GY0202 33036 £2,500

Promotion and GY0202 35022 £13,560

marketing
TOTAL £22,060

Retained funds

There are a number of retained funds across the authority that have been accrued, that have a
particular focus on Town Centre activity.

Page 42



Title Assistant Director Retained Fund Code Value
Market Income AD Partnerships PM1691 X0156 f 57,626.00
Retained Funds

Conservation Grants AD Growth and PM1775 X0156 £ 25,000.00
Retained Funds Regeneration

Place Investment AD Growth and PM1640 X0156 £ 30,760.00
Retained Fund Regeneration

TOTAL £ 113,386.00

Total Budget

Over a 5 year proposed timetable, the total pot available for new and additional town centre revenue
projects will be £223,686, meaning that on average there could be £44,737 available per year,
however this will depend on the type of projects “bid” for. Other budgets could be added to this fund if
it was felt better use of monies and economies of scale could be made from other services that deliver
activities related to the Town Centre.

LEGAL/RISK IMPLICATIONS BACKGROUND

There are no identified legal implications for the proposed approach.
Each project will be subject to an individual risk assessment as part of the project governance.
However some high level risks for this approach have been identified as follows:

Risk: Lack of finance/resources Impact: High

Mitigation: To have a realistic and clear approach to budgeting and to plan ahead for any
recruitment or training that may be required.

Risk: Disengagement of key players Impact: Medium

Mitigation: To clearly identify lead roles and timescales. Changes to policies and
procedures may be required to ensure projects stay on track.

Risk: Economy changes Impact: Medium

Mitigation: To be flexible and realistic.

Risk: Partnership disengagement Impact: Medium

Mitigation: To hold regular meeting with partners, making sure all roles are clear. Review
partnerships to see if any work can be done in house.

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

Tamworth town centre performs a strategic function and provides the most sustainable location for
many services and facilities required by those living and working within and close to Tamworth. It
provides key civic, retail, housing, service, education, employment and leisure opportunities and
facilities in a central location that is well served by public transport. It is by definition the most
accessible location for all members of the community whether they seek to travel by private car, bus,
rail, cycling or walking.

It is evident that the town centre is showing signs of decline with the increasing number of empty
properties. There is a general lack of investment in property which may point to reducing confidence in
the town and the appearance of discount retailers, charity shops and the general high turnover of
marginal businesses. As a consequence, patronage within the centre will fall and the general
appearance and perception of the centre will lead to people avoiding the town centre thereby creating
an unsafe, hostile environment. The decline will continue in a vicious circle unless action is taken.

Page 43



The development of a strategy for the town centre will focus on its advantage as the optimal location
for many services and facilities. Market forces will lead to some functions leaving the centre but others
will replace them should the right conditions be created. The strategy will help to redefine the function
of the town centre and aspire to deliver a centre that is fit for purpose and able to respond to the
challenges it faces. It is anticipated that a new approach will help to increase confidence and
investment in Tamworth, helping to revitalise the town centre.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Key issues

The origins of town centres lie in the social needs of people to come together for company, protection
and survival. Historically they are literally the centre of the town — the point at which main
thoroughfares lead to and meet. The centre of towns have always been the focus of economic activity:
buying and selling commaodities, services, entertainment. Since Victorian times the focus of economic
activity has been retailing. With the rise of supermarkets and then the trend for larger format stores
seeking out of centre locations, easily accessible by car, the high street has been dominated by
fashion retail.

However, over the last 15 years the Country has experienced structural changes to retailing and the
economy which is impacting on the look and feel of town centres:

- Increasing rents

- Demand for larger format units

- Desire for key retailers to locate in proximity to each other

- Desire for an ‘experience’

- Rise of internet shopping

- Increased staff costs as a result of minimum and living wage
This has led to greater competition between retailers, centres, increase pressure for out of centre
locations to accommodate larger format stores and car parking and increases in complimentary uses.
This has resulted in store closures of national brands as well as smaller local independents. It has
impacted on traditional town centres who haven’t been able to compete or adapt to these changes.

Tamworth town centre has been hit as hard as other areas. The vacancy rate is now 14% which is its
highest for a number of years. The national vacancy rate was 11.2% at the end of 2017 (Savillls).

The town has seen store closures of national retailers such as HMV and Woolworths, and relocations
by others such as Argos, McDonalds, Dorothy Perkins, Clarks to the out of centre retail parks. Those
out of centre retail parks which historically were dominated by supermarkets and white goods retailers
are now focus for fashion retail and leisure (restaurants, cafes, gym) as well as supermarkets.
Ironically, the out of centre retail parks are also now being impacted with national store closures such
as Maplins and Toys a R’Us, and well reported difficulties for John Lewis, M&S and Mothercare.

Tamworth town centre also struggles with a lack of diversity of uses. There is a lack of an evening
economy beyond traditional pubs, with not many restaurants in the town centre given size of town.
Leisure uses beyond pubs are confined to the edges of the town centre. Furthermore, there are not
many town centre residential properties within the actual centre.

Where Tamworth town centre is strong is its large market, which is very popular and brings in people
to town on Tuesdays and Saturdays. The town centre also has a varied and popular events
programme ranging from drive in cinema to fireworks and attracting large numbers of visitors such as
St Georges Day which attracts 11,000 visitors to the town, although focused in the Castle Grounds but
also smaller ones such as Art Attack held in Ankerside which recently attracted over 1,000
participants.

There has been lots written about these changes and possible responses such as the Portas Review
and the Grimsey review. Organisations such as GBSLEP have also undertaken work to identify best
practice and the LGA have prepared a toolkit for Local Authorities. Government Policy still recognises
that town centres are the heart of the community and that their viability and vitality should be protected
and enhanced.

The Council wants to achieve safe vibrant places for people of all ages to visit and the regeneration of
the town centre is a clear ambition in the Corporate Plan.

Page 44



Current TBC activity

The Councils ambitions for the town centre are set out in its Local Plan. This sets out land use policy
and strategy. This builds on the Tamworth masterplan completed with partners in 2009.

The Council has a role as provider of services to town centre businesses and visitors such as housing,
conservation area grants, car parking, open spaces, street cleansing, refuge collection, facilities and
attractions such as the Assembly Rooms and Castle, commercial property, business startup space
(TEC), regulatory such as planning and environment health. As part of the BID process the Council
estimated that the annual cost of these services (excluding housing related work) was £2.7m.

In addition, the Council has undertaken a number of important projects to enhance the vitality and
viability of the town centre. The Enterprise Quarter project valued at c.£5.8m will deliver an enhanced
and extended Assembly rooms, Tamworth Enterprise Centre (TEC), a new restaurant, public realm
and library improvements. The TEC has now been open a year and has supported 19 businesses and
supported the creation and retention of 56 jobs. The Assembly Rooms is due to be completed mid
2019 and the restaurant will follow. The Gateways project is undertaking public realm enhancements
to key gateways and routes into the town centre. Routes already enhanced include the route from
Ventura Park to the town centre and from the railway station to the town centre costing a total of
£2.35million. Future phases will consider Church St and Corporation Street. Work is currently taking
place to create a new visitor experience at the Castle with a capital value of c.£750k. Work also took
place in 2013 to host the Staffordshire Hoard which had a value of £1.16m, which led to a 23%
increase in visitor numbers.

Future activity

Officers have been considering how services in relation to the town centre could be delivered in the
future and have been working on a project pipeline. Given the reduction in local government financing,
there will be a need to maximise the use of resources, both financial and people and skills. The recent
management structure changes have given an opportunity to think more holistically about the town
centre and consider it as a complex economic ecosystem. The community, businesses and partners
expectation is that the Council will set a strategic direction for the town centre to give stability and
confidence. The town centre will continue to be a focus for facilities and services as the most
sustainable accessible location in the town, particular the most vulnerable. Given this, it is considered
that the Councils approach to the town centre should be modified and that a flexible long term strategy
for the town centre should be produced. This will enable the development of clear projects with
defined roles, timescales and resources to deliver the strategy. Involvement from identified key
stakeholders will help steer the projects to ensure they are viable and desired.

Programme Board approach

It is proposed that to give good governance and ensure delivery that a ‘programme’ approach is
utilised. This will utilise Executive Leadership Team (ELT) to sign off individual projects, oversee their
implementation and ensure coordination happens between projects. Senior officers will be appointed
as key project sponsors and they will assemble project teams for each project as required. Cabinet will
approve and have oversight of the Strategy and a rolling programme of projects. It is proposed that the
Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee receive quarterly updates on progress against
the strategy and programme. Further details of this approach is contained within Appendix A

Projects

Through the approaches outlined in previous sections, projects will be designed by and also submitted
to the Town Centre Coordination Group in order to be assessed and prioritised into a programme
management framework, which will then be agreed by ELT.

A programme of projects will be established over a 5 year period, with the aim of having more projects
than available monies, to counteract the risk of projects not being delivered or failing due to
unforeseen consequences.

Projects will be expected to conform to a number of requirements:
1. Be predominantly revenue only with minimal capital expenditure.
2. Be additional activity, not replacing or replicating current activity or spend
3. Meet specific project criteria to be set out by ELT.

Page 45



The only activity expected to be directly affected by this approach is the Visitor Guide, however as
already mentioned, a separate piece of work is already being undertaken across services as part of
the place investment Strategy to identify more collaborative practices which would result in economies
of scale and further efficiencies.

A project pipeline is included in appendix B. It is expected that projects will focus on some of the
following activity areas:
e Building improvement; e.g. shop fronts / signage
business support schemes; e.g. training / grant funds.
Business engagement and relationships,
Events
Feasibility reports for larger capital projects.
Market research and intelligence: e.g. commercial property assessments / sector research /
consumer trends.
e Marketing activity; e.g specific campaigns / social media activity.

Strategy

Going forward, a clear framework is needed to set out the Council’s priorities for the town centre in
order to guide service delivery and investment decisions. A strategy will identify priorities for
improvements in the town centre and ensure that decisions are assessed on the contribution made to
delivering the town centre vision.

The Strategy for the town centre is a key component of the programme management approach that
advocates a vision with defined aims and objectives. This will be a high level document that will drive
the organisation towards desired outcomes. The strategy will require high level leadership and
commitment to be successful and clearly articulates what is required. It should eliminate any areas of
doubt and provide a reference point for project development and delivery.

In promoting a programme management approach, the Council will be looking to deliver a series of
related projects concurrently to achieve enhanced benefits from the projects as a group. Proposals will
be assessed as to whether they comply with the strategy and only those projects that do and are
complimentary will proceed to the next stage. Projects that are delivered individually can often miss
their targets and outputs and while they may be successful, their full potential is unlikely to be realised.

It is envisaged that the strategy will be organised into a number of themes covering the following
areas:
e Leisure — encompassing retail, food and drink, sport and recreation and events offer.
e Housing — consideration of town centre living, tenures, client groups and services and facilities
required to support a town centre residential community.
e Identity — focussing on the town’s distinctiveness and attractions, anchors, negative aspects of
the centre and marketing activities associated with the town centre.
e Public realm — looking at buildings, landscaping, legibility, security, infrastructure and public
spaces.
e Accessibility — including public transport, car parking, pedestrian routes and flows, servicing,
traffic movement and pedestrian and vehicle safety.
e Stewardship — emphasis on the Council’s role as a landlord and owner, street cleansing,
maintenance and consideration of implications of policy constraint.
e Engagement — promoting an overall champion, ensuring inclusivity and representation across
all sectors, shared vision/strategy, accountability and resources.

The Strategy will not be a Masterplan for the town centre which will follow as a separate document
that will identify opportunities for investment and improvement to deliver the physical, social and
environmental aspirations of the strategy. Elements of the strategy and action plan will be delivered in-
house but it will be necessary to bring in specialist skills to facilitate discussion and potentially assist in
the formulation of the strategy to ensure that good practice and experience from elsewhere is
captured. An engagement and marketing strategy will be important to inform consultation with key
partners and people that live and work in the borough. Again, external support will assist with this.

Timetable
If agreed by Cabinet the principles of the programme management approach will be adopted

immediately. It is envisages that the Strategy will be brought back to Cabinet in Spring 2020 for
consideration alongside a programme plan of projects.

Page 46



REPORT AUTHORS

Matthew Fletcher x382
Sushil Birdi x279
Matthew Bowers x276

LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS

LGA toolkit: https://www.local.gov.uk/topics/economic-growth/revitalising-town-centres-toolkit-councils
GBSLEP Towns and Local Centres Framework:

Portas Review: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-portas-review-the-future-of-our-high-
streets

Grimsey review 1 and 2: http://www.vanishinghighstreet.com/wp-
content/uploads/2018/07/GrimseyReview2.pdf

Tamworth Local Plan: http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/local-plan

Tamworth Masterplan:

https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/planning _docs/D_Retail/D10%20Tamworth _Town Cen
tre _Masterplan_Final Report Oct 08.pdf

APPENDICES

A) Proposed Governance Structure
B) Project Pipeline

Page 47


https://www.local.gov.uk/topics/economic-growth/revitalising-town-centres-toolkit-councils
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-portas-review-the-future-of-our-high-streets
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-portas-review-the-future-of-our-high-streets
http://www.vanishinghighstreet.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/07/GrimseyReview2.pdf
http://www.vanishinghighstreet.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/07/GrimseyReview2.pdf
http://www.tamworth.gov.uk/local-plan
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/planning_docs/D_Retail/D10%20Tamworth_Town_Centre_Masterplan_Final_Report_Oct_08.pdf
https://www.tamworth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/planning_docs/D_Retail/D10%20Tamworth_Town_Centre_Masterplan_Final_Report_Oct_08.pdf

This page is intentionally left blank



Corporate Governance Structure for Town Centre Projects

The following structure is suggested in order to deliver a coordinated and robust approach to
programme and project management of Council led activities that will benefit the Town Centre.

Infrastructure, Safety and

Cabinet Growth Scrutiny

Committee

Programme Board (Executive
Leadership Team)

\

Town Centre Coordination

Group

Project Project Project Project

The Governance structure is comprised of 5 component parts designed to ensure delivery of projects
is coordinated, resourced, authorised and scrutinised appropriately.

Roles, Responsibilities and Representation:

Each component part of the governance structure has its own role to play in delivery activity to
support the Town Centre. Below details the role of each group, its responsibilities and the officers
that will attend.

1. Projects

Roles and responsibilities:

e To deliver specific, agreed projects that contribute to and form part of the Town Centre
Strategy.

e  Work to an agreed scope, timescale and budget.

e Project leads to regularly attend Town Centre Coordination Group

e Project leads report to programme board when required

e Project leads attend Programme Board when required

e Project managers to manage and oversee all day to day aspects of the project.

Version 1.1MF20180808

Page 49



o All projects will have an end of project evaluation which will be reported to the
programme board

Representation:

e Projects will have an agreed Lead Officer from TBC nominated by Coordination Group or
Programme Board dependent upon scale, who will be responsible for the project.

e Project managers will be assigned based on capacity, skills and experience when needed

e Project teams will be formed of the most appropriate officers based on capacity, skills
and experience, and relevant external partners e.g. County Council, Police, LEP,
architects, project managers etc.

e Project support will be provided dependant on the scale of the project.

e Project assurance will be provided by the Programme board or a dedicate resource from
Audit or an internal peer, dependant on the scale and complexity of the project.

Frequency and duration of meetings:

e Asrequired by the project.

2. Town Centre Coordination Group (CG)

Roles and Responsibilities:

e To have a strong awareness of all activity taking place in the Town Centre.

e To be a central point for sharing good practice and intelligence.

e To keep officers up to date on projects progress.

e To work together and coordinate activity on business as usual town centre related
services e.g. events programme

e To ensure key account management takes place and assign officers

e To identify, design and scope out projects for approval by programme board, through
the creation of a Project Brief and Project Inception Document.

e Toidentify key internal officers to Lead projects and be involved in projects.

e To have a permanent presence on the Programme Board in a non-decision making
capacity, through the Chair and Vice Chair.

Representation:

e The CG will have a designated Chair and Vice Chair (to rotate on an annual basis).

e The CG will have a designated Business Support Officer to coordinate meetings /
agendas / minutes and relevant documentation

e Attendance by relevant TBC officers only. All service areas that have an involvement in
the Town Centre should be represented where appropriate.

e External Officers to be an exception and on an invite basis only.

e Project Leads will be expected to attend for the life of their project if different to existing
attendees.

e Programme Manager to attend

Version 1.1MF20180808

Page 50



Frequency and duration of meetings:

e Every 6 weeks - 2 hours maximum.

3. Programme Board (PB)

Roles and Responsibilities:

e To approve, decline or defer projects proposed by the CG.

e To agree and define a three year rolling programme of projects for the Town Centre that
are primarily being delivered by TBC.

e To be aware of progress against Programme and projects being delivered.

e To be aware of Town Centre projects that are primarily being delivered by partners
other than TBC and agree TBC resource support.

e Toown and Lead on the delivery and implementation of the Town Centre Strategy

e To monitor and be responsible for the status and risks of all projects in delivery.

e To identify opportunities for resources where required, particularly in terms of officer
skill sets and collaborative budget setting.

e To allocate, approve, manage and identify relevant resources needed to successfully
deliver a project.

e To review end of project evaluations and evaluate the success of projects with outcomes
and learning disseminated learning throughout the authority.

e To approve change in scope of projects whilst in delivery or suspend or close projects
based on risk, achievement of objectives or need for project.

e To report on progress through project leads or the programme manager on a quarterly
basis to Scrutiny

e To annually report to Cabinet progress against the defined 3 year rolling programme.

Representation:

e Executive Leadership team.

e Programme Manager

e Project Leads where invited and or deemed necessary.

e Chair and / or Vice Chair of Town Centre Coordination Group

e External partners where invited and or deemed necessary

e The PB will have a designated Business Support Officer to coordinate meetings / agendas
/ minutes and relevant documentation

Frequency and duration of meetings:

e Quarterly — 2 hours maximum

4. Cabinet

Roles and Responsibilities:

Version 1.1MF20180808

Page 51



e To approve and have oversight of the Town Centre Strategy

e To approve and have oversight of the 3 year rolling Programme of Projects
e To approve the deployment, reallocation of resources where required

e To receive reports from the ISG Scrutiny where appropriate

5. Infrastructure, Safety and Growth Scrutiny Committee

Roles and Responsibilities

e Scrutinise effectiveness of decisions by Cabinet regarding the Town Centre Strategy

e Scrutinise the 3 year rolling programme of projects.

e Receive quarterly updates on progress against the programme

e Callinindividual projects for scrutiny where they are not performing against programme
or PID

e Act as advisory / stakeholder

Version 1.1MF20180808

Page 52



Project

Place Investment
Strategy

Gungate / Spinning
School Lane

TIC

Town Centre
Masterplan

Market Tender
Street trading policy
and public space hire
policy

Design SPD

Market Street / Town
Wall

Gateways

St Edithas Square
Car Parking Strategy
Castle Review

Enterprise Quarter

Develop approach to
town centre business
support

Re-use of empty space
and properties
Railway Station
forecourt

Bus station / bus
interchange

Railway station car
park

Project Pipeline

Status
Development

Inception

Development of
preferred option
Inception

Inception
Inception

In progress
Option appraisal

In progress:

PH1 &PH2 complete,
PH3 in design stage
Inception

Inception

In progress

In progress: TEC
complete, Assems in
progress, Carnegie and
public realm to start
Inception

Inception

Inception

Inception

Inception

Project lead / manager
Matt Fletcher

David Hunter / Matt
Bowers
Matt Bowers

David Hunter / Matt
Bowers

To be agreed

To be agreed

Sushil Birdi

David Hunter

David Hunter

To be agreed

To be agreed

Matt Bowers / Louise
Tromans

Matt Bowers / Sarah
McGrandle / David

Hunter

To be agreed

To be agreed
To be agreed
To be agreed

To be agreed

Page 53

Priority
High

High
High
High
High
Med
Med
Med
Low
Low
Low

Med

Med

Medium

Medium
Low
Low

Low



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	6 Budget Consultation 2019/20
	Appendix 1 Budget Consultation 2019/20

	7 Town Centre Report
	Appendix 1 Programme Management
	Appendix 2 Draft Town Centre Project pipeline


